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Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.

VISION STATEMENT

The vision of Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited is to contribute positively to the Socio-
Economic growth of Pakistan through business and industrial pursuits endeavoring to achieve excellence
inall spheres of such activity with effective and efficient management.

MISSION STATEMENT

Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited becomes a truly professional organization, achieve higher
quality standards, utilize maximum capacity, capture expansion opportunities and becomes a least cost
operatoramongstits competitors.

We will strive to continue as a successful Company, make profit and thus create value for our shareholders,
customers, suppliersand employees.

QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our aim is to achieve the leadership of textile and spinning industry through quality products according to
customer satisfaction. We thrive to achieve the above through the following measures:

1) Acquisition of quality raw material.

2) Manufacturing of high quality yarn as per customer satisfaction.

3) Continuous training and guidance to employees regarding quality and environment.

4) Continuous improvement, close watch and control in production process and environment.
5) Follow up of the system, regarding international quality and environmental laws.

6) Control of pollution discharge from industrial process.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 61*Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Saturday October 27, 2018 at 03:30 p.m. at its registered
office, Allawasaya Square, Mumtazabad Industrial Area, Vehari Road, Multan to transact the following business:

N =

To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on May 25, 2018.
To receive, consider and adopt the annual audited financial statements of the Company together with the Directors', Auditors' Reports and
Chairperson's Review thereon for the year ended June 30, 2018.
To consider and approve the distribution of cash dividend @37.50% (Rs.3.75 per share) as recommended by the Board for the year ended June
30,2018.
To appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration for the financial year ending June 30, 2019 who will hold office till conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting. The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed the appointment of M/s Deloitte Yousuf
Adil Chartered Accountants as external auditors. The retiring auditors being eligible, have consented and offered themselves for re-
appointment.
Totransactany other business with the permission of the Chair.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Sd/-
(MUHAMMAD ISMAIL)

Multan, October 04,2018 COMPANY SECRETARY

NOTES:
1.

The Shares Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 20-10-2018 to 27-10-2018 (both days inclusive) transfers received in order at the office of the
Company's Shares Registrar, M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited, H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore by the close of business on October 19, 2018 will
betreatedintime.

Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, may appoint anyother member as a proxy to attend, speak and vote on behalf of him/her. A proxy must be
a member. Proxy Forms duly stamped with Rs.¥- revenue stamp, signed and witnessed by One person, in order to be valid must be received at the Registered
Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

Any individual beneficial owners of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at the meeting must bring his/her CNIC or passport to prove his/her identity and the proxy
shall produce his/ her original CNIC or passport. In case of corporate members, the Boards' resolution or power of attorney with specimen signatures of the
nominee shall require to be produced at the time of meeting.

For the convenience of Members, a Standard Request Form with appropriate details has been uploaded on the Company's website<www.allawasaya.com>.
Those Members who opt to receive the hard copies of the annual audited financial statements instead of sending the same through CD/DVD/USB at their
registered addresses may apply to the Company Secretary at his postal or email address secretary@allawasaya.com.

Members are requested to submit an attested photocopy of their valid Computerized National Identity Cards (CNICs) as per SECP's direction, if not provided
earlier and also communicate to the Company immediately of any change in their addresses.

Members can also avail Video Conference facility in (name of cities where facility can be provided keeping in view geographical dispersal of members). In this
regard please fill the following form and submit to the registered address of the Company within ten (10) days before holding of annual general meeting.

I/ We, of , being a member of ALLAWASAYA TEXTILE AND FINISHING MILLS LIMITED,
holder of Ordinary Shares as per Register Folio No./ CDCA/CNo.. hereby opt for Video Conference Facility at

Signature of member

If the Company receives consent from members holding an aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the
meeting through Video Conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange Video Conference facility in that city subject to
availability of such facility in that city.

CNIC numbers of shareholders are mandatorily required for Dividend distribution. Shareholders are, therefore, requested to submit a copy of their CNIC (if not
already provided) to the Share Registrar. In ase of non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC, the Company would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1)/2012 dated
July 05, 2012 of SECP and therefore will be constrained to withhold the payment of dividend of such shareholders. The shareholders while sending CNIC must
quote their respective folionumberand name of the Company.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with SRO No0.1145(1)2017 dated November 6,2017 and the
Companies (Distribution of Dividends)Regulations, 2017, shareholdersare MANDATORILY required to provide their bank account details to
receive theircash dividenddirectlyintotheirbankaccountsinsteadofreceivingitthroughdividend warrants..Moreover,pursuant toSection 243
(3) of theAct, the Company shall bebound to withholdany dividenddeclared bythe companyofthose shareholders who donot providetheir bank
details.

Shareholders who have not yet submitted their International Bank Account Number (IBAN) are requested to fill in Electronic Credit Mandate Form available on
Company's website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of the Company M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited, H.M.

House, 7-Bank Square, Lahore, in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholder's broker/ participant/ CDC account services.
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CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW REPORT U/S 192 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
ON OVERALL BOARD PERFORMANCE AND BOARD'S ROLE IN ACHIEVING
THE COMPANY'S OBJECTIVES FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Annual Evaluation of the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited, is carried out
in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance to ensure that its performance and effectiveness is as

per the expectations to achieve the goals and objectives of the Company. For the financial year ended June 30,2018, it is assessed
as Satisfactory. There was no violation of the code of conduct.

The Board meetings and Committee meetings were always well attended. The members of the Board of Directors of the Company
were sent agendas and supporting material well in time prior to the board and its committee meetings. All the Directors made
important contribution and made their best efforts for the achievements of the satisfactory results during the year. The expertise of
the Independent and non-executive Directors were also a great help in the decision making process. The operations of the

Company's Units were strategically planned and all the resources were optimally utilized. The performance results were found
satisfactory.

All the employees of the Company were met with equitable treatment who also contributed to the Company business through their
effective and efficient working.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
MRS. NUSRAT JAMIL

CHAIRPERSON
Multan, October 4, 2018
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

In the name of Allah the Most Beneficent and the Merciful

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is my privilege to present before you the 61"Annual Report on
the affairs of your Company along with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended June 30, 2018.

PERFORMANCE:

By the grace of Almighty Allah, the performance of your Company remained satisfactory during the year under
report. The Mills produced Polyester-Cotton blended yarn throughout the year. The total production of yarn during
the year under review at 20's count basis was13,102,051.53 Kgs (actual production 8,207,710.56 Kgs) as compared
to 13,024,171.86 Kgs (actual production 8,267,268.24 Kgs) last year. During the year the prices of yarn improved,
in-spite of increase in tariff rates for electricity and gas/ RLNG prices, it resulted into better profit margin. The total
sales for the year amounted to Rs. 2,168,465,319/- (8,284,641.12 Kgs) as compared to Rs. 1,966,036,666/-
(8,423,533.44 Kgs) last year. The gross profit for the year was Rs. 124,872,086/- as compared toRs. 49,054,839/- last
year. The Net Profit after providing for Tax amounted to Rs. 17,633,101/- as compared to the Net Loss of
(Rs.40,346,211/-) last year.

The financial results for the year ended June 30, 2018 along with the comparative figures of the last year are
summarized under the respective heads of Accounts below:

ACCOUNTS:
Fortheyearended Fortheyearended
June 30,2018 June 30,2017
Rupees Rupees

Sales- net 2,168,465,319 1,966,036,666
Cost of goods sold (2,043,593,233) (1,916,981,827)
Gross Profit 124,872,086 49,054,839
Other income/ (expenses) - (2,316,945)

124,872,086 46,737,894
Distribution and marketing expenses (14,817,005) (12,492,485)
Administrative Expenses (50,239,918) (45,799,646)
Operating Expenses (2,684,132) -
Finance Cost (21,114,699) (20,562,389)
Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation 36,016,332 (32,116,626)

Provision for Taxation

Current

- for the year (27,105,816) (18,214,931)

- prior year 965,453 -

Deferred Tax 7,757,132 9,985,346
(18,383,231) (8,229,585)

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Earning/ (Loss)per share- basic and diluted

17,633,101

(40,346,211)

22.04

(50.43)
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

The future outlook of the textile sector is expected to remain tough in the near future as well. In this scenario, the
whole industry is looking towards the new Government to support the textile industry of Pakistan and help it to
become competitive globally. In view of existing circumstances and the challenges being faced by the textile sector, it
is strongly recommended that textile sector should be facilitated by subsidizing rates of electricity and one price of
Gas/ RLNG acrossthe country, so that the Punjab based textile industry becomes comparative with other provinces.

The Company is engaged in continuous process of BMR of its Mills. The Company has now embarked upon its major
BMR plan to upgrade its existing production facilities by replacing the older machinery with efficient machinery to
improve the quality and quantity of its yarn produced. For this purpose financial arrangements have been made and
Letter of Credits have been established through M/s Bank AL Habib Limited for replacement of machinery and
addition in Back process, Ring and Autowinding departments of its Unit No.1. Your Directors believe that with the
addition/ replacement and up-gradation of machinery, not only the quality of its yarn improves but the quantity of
its production will also increase leading to better viability of your Mills.

DIVIDEND

In its meeting held on October 4, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company, to share the profit earned by the
Company forthe yearended June 30,2018 with the shareholders, have proposed distribution of a final cash dividend
@37.50% (Rs.3.75 per share) to the shareholders of the Company.

REVISION IN REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND TWO FULL TIME WORKING DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company inits Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on May 25, 2018, passed the Ordinary Resolution approving
the revision in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and two full time Working Directors with effect from 30"
May 2018 in addition to other perquisites/ benefits already allowed as before as per following detail:

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer - PKR:500,000/- per month
Remuneration of Director Marketing & Sales - PKR:500,000/- per month
Remuneration of Director Production - PKR:400,000/- per month

1SO 9001:2015 QMS AND ISO 14001:2015 EMS CERTIFICATION

Your Directors are pleased to report that your Company is quite successfully maintainingits 1ISO 9001:2015
Certification for Quality Management System and the ISO 14001:2015 Certification for Environmental Management
System.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Directors are pleased to report that the Company is complying with the requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance as introduced by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The various statements, as
required by the code, are given below:
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial statements, prepared by the Company, fairly present its state of affairs, the results of operations, cash
flows, and changes in equity;

BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS:
The Company has maintained proper books of accounts;
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

COMPLIANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IAS):

International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial
statements;

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

ON GOING CONCERN:

The Company's financial position is sound enough to ensure its continuity as an ongoing concern;

NO OUTSTANDING STATUTORY DUES:

There are no outstanding statutory dues on account of taxes, levies and charges except of normal and routine nature;
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Key operating and financial data of the last six years is given in Annex 1.

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year ended June 30, 2018 five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance of each
Directoris given below:

Director's Name Meeting Attended
Mian Muhammad Jamil 5

Mian Tanvir Ahmad Sheikh
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil

Mian Taugir Ahmad Sheikh
Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh

4
5
5
4




Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.

I

Mian Muhammad Bilal Ahmad Sheikh
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan
Mian Muhammad Umar Farooq Sheikh
Mr. Javed Musarrat

Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi

[T S N S € ) B O]

Mr. Imran Hussain

The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance by each member was as follows:

Members Name Attendance
Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh 4
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil 4
Mr. Javed Musarrat 4

The Audit Committee has been reconstituted. Mr. Javed Musarrat, Independent Director has been
appointed as Chairman of the committee in place of Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh on June 2,2018.

The HR& R Committee held one (1) meeting during the year. Attendance by each member was as follows:

Members Name Attendance
Mian Muhammad Jamil 1
Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh 1
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil 1

The HR& R Committee has been reconstituted. Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi, Independent Director, has
been appointed as Chairman of the committee in place of Mian Muhammad Jamilon June 2,2018.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The Board consists of 10 male and 1 female directors with following composition:

Independent Directors 3
Other Non-executive Directors 5
Executive Directors 3
Total number of Directors 11

AUDITORS

Your Company's Auditors M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants, Multan retire and being eligible offer
themselves for re-appointment for the next year.

10
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement showing pattern of shareholdings of the Company and additional information as at June 30, 2018 is
annexed to thisreport.

RELATIONS WITH LABOUR AND STAFF

Your Directors are happy to report that relations with labour and staff of the Company remained cordial throughout
theyear.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors acknowledge the best cooperation as usual enjoyed by your Company from M/s Habib Bank Limited,
M/s Bank Al Habib Limited, M/s Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited and M/s United Bank Limited and wish to record
their appreciation for the same and hope the Bankers will continue their support to the Company in futureas well.

The dedicated hard work of all employees of the Company is also acknowledged.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
MRS. NUSRAT JAMIL

CHAIRPERSON
Multan, October 4, 2018

11
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SIX YEARS KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, [ 208 [ 207 || 206 [ | 2005 || 2014 [] 2013
BALANCE SHEET

Authorized Capital 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued , Subscribed & Paid up Capital 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000
Surplus on Revaluation of Property,

Plant & Equipment 555,466,212 564,143,421 575,634,520 457,304,932 471,395,262 485,736,969
Tax holiday reserve 2,668,746 2,668,746 2,668,746 2,668,746 2,668,746 2,668,746
General reserve 80,000,000 80,000,000 80,000,000 80,000,000 80,000,000 80,000,000
Unappropriated Profits 181,999,407 152,641,179 178,237,663 204,822,116 216,023,031 180,946,420
Total Equity 828,134,365 807,453,346 844,540,929 752,795,794 778,087,039 757,352,135
Long Term Liabilities - - - - - 11,342,670
Deferred Liabilities 95,745,379 106,550,429 119,794,403 110,163,021 131,437,931 152,131,668
Short Term Liabilities 435,701,497 351,378,451 383,227,754 274,999,671 199,186,565 192,769,321
Total Liabilities 531,446,876 457,928,830 503,022,157 385,162,692 330,624,496 356,243,659
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,359,581,241 1,265,382,226 1,347,563,086 1,137,958,486 1,108,711,535 1,113,595,794
Fixed Assets 851,124,734 882,766,913 890,476,175 756,874,934 793,848,822 812,267,882
Long Term Deposits 2,379,997 2,379,997 2,379,997 2,379,997 2,223,997 2,627,781
Current Assets 506,076,510 380,235,316 454,706,914 378,703,555 312,638,716 298,700,131
Total Assets 1,359,581,241 1,265,382,226 1,347,563,086 1,137,958,486 1,108,711,535 1,113,595,794
Profit & Loss Account
Turnover 2,168,465,319 1,966,036,666  1,673,156,869 1,759,164,451 2,167,183,350 2,038,914,882
Gross Profit 124,872,086 49,054,839 50,541,703 13,657,493 141,258,633 218,850,085
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 36,016,332 (32,116,626) (35,643,655) (56,745,009) 38,734,562 121,466,461
Profit / (Loss) after Taxation 17,633,101 (40,346,211) (37,799,098) (19,582,864) 36,934,904 87,194,366
Distribution
Cash Dividend % 37.50 - - - 102.50 202.50
Ratios
Break up value per share (Rs.) 1,035.17 1,009.32 1,055.68 940.99 972,61 946.69
Earning / (Loss) per share (Rs.) 22.04 (50.43) (47.25) (24.48) 46.17 108.99
Current Ratio 116:1 1.08:1 119:1 138:1 157:1 155:1
Debt/ equity ratio 00:100 00:100 00:100 00:100 01:99 06:94
CAPACITY & PRODUCTION
No.of spindles installed and worked 30,592 30,592 30,592 30,592 30,592 30,592
Capacity of yarn at 20's count (Kgs) 13,164,469 13,213,585 12,864,160 12,111,985 12,314,067 11,922,889
Actual production of yarn at 20's count (Kgs) 13,102,052 12,882,613 12,679,268 11,896,628 12,056,349 11,703,986

12
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017
Year ending JUNE 30, 2018

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 11 as per the following:
a. Male: 10
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

a) Independent Directors:

Mr. Javed Musarrat Independent Director
Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi Independent Director
Mr. Imran Hussain Independent Director

b) Other Non-executive Directors:

Mrs. Nusrat Jamil Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)
Mian Taugir Ahmad Sheikh Non-Executive Director
Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh Non-Executive Director

Mian Muhammad Bilal Ahmad Sheikh  Non-Executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Umar Farooq Sheikh  Non-Executive Director

c) Executive Directors:

Mian Muhammad Jamil Executive Director
Mian Tanvir Ahmad Sheikh Executive Director (CEQ)
Mr. Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Executive Director
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies,

including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved oramended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
board/ shareholders asempowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman or Chairperson and, in his/ her absence, by a
director elected by the Board as Chairman. The board has complied with the requirements of the Act, the Rules
and Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

13
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and the Regulations.

During the year two Independent Directors namely Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi and Mr. Imran Hussain were
appointed directors on May 25, 2018. Since Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi is former Commissioner SECP, he is
considered exempt from any requirement of formal training, however, Mr. Imran Hussain can avail opportunity
of Directors' Training Program within one year of his appointment. All the directors on the Board are fully
conversant with their duties and responsibilities as directors of the Company.

There was no new appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the year.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee: Mr. Javed Musarrat- Independent Director- Chairman
Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh- Non-Executive Director- Member
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil- Non-Executive Director- Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: = Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi- Independent Director- Chairman
Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh- Non-Executive Director- Member
Mr. Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan- Executive Director- Member
The Audit Committee and HR& Remuneration Committees were reconstituted on June 2, 2018.
¢) Nomination Committee (not applicable)

d) Risk Management Committee (not applicable)

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formulated and documented for Committees'
compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the Committees is as follows:

a) Audit Committee: 4 quarterly meetings
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 1 annual meeting

¢) Nomination Committee (not applicable)

d) Risk Management Committee (not applicable)

The board has set up an effective internal audit function headed by the Head of Internal Audit. The staff is
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company andisinvolved in the internal audit function on a full time basis.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory ratingunder the
guality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or
any partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm

14



I

Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.

and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the ICAP

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.
On behalf ofthe Board ofDirectors
Sd/-
MRS. NUSRAT JAMIL
Multan, October 4, 2018

CHAIRPERSON

15
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the Members of Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Limted
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Limited for
theyearendedJune 30,2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulation is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions
of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion
onthe effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also
ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine
the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertakenatarm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance

does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in
the Regulations asapplicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

DELOITTE YOUSUF ADIL
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner:

Rana Muhammad Usman Khan

Multan, October4,2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Allawasaya Textile &Finishing Mills Limited(the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss, and
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017), inthe manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as
atJune 30, 2018 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
thenended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Changeinaccounting policy as aresult of changesinthe
Companies Act 2017

As referred to the note 2 to the accompanying financial
statements, the Companies Act 2017 (the Act) became
applicable for the first time for the preparation of
Company's annual financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018 due to which the Company has
changed its accounting policy to account for surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets (refer note 2.5.2) with
retrospective effect. Previously, surplus on revaluation
was presented in the financial statements below the
equity and changes in surplus was taken directly to
equity. Due to change in accounting policy, surplus on
revaluation will be part of the equity and revaluation
changes will be taken through other comprehensive
income.

We have considered the above as a Key Audit Matter
due to the significant amount of surplus on revaluation
of fixed assets, the complexity involved in the
calculations for retrospective application and
compliance with the disclosure requirements of IAS 8
Accounting Policies and Changes in Accounting
Estimatesand Errors.

Our audit procedures included the following:

* Obtained workings for retrospective

accounting of surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets;

*  Re-performed the calculations based on the
working and valuation reports of the
respective years.

*  Reviewed that values of fixed assets, surplus
onrevaluation of fixed assets and gain /loss on
assets disposed-off have been properly
restatedin the financial statements; and

Assessed if the change in accounting policy
has been properly disclosed by the
management in the financial statements of
the Company inaccordance with IAS-8.

Revenue Recognition

The Company's sales comprise of revenue from the
sale of yarn and polyester as has been disclosed in
note 20to the financial statements.

Revenue from the sale is recognized, when
significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the customer (note 2.5.12).

We identified revenue recognition as key audit
matter asitis one of the key performance indicators
of the Company and because of the potential risk
that revenue transactions may not have been
recognized based on transfer of risk and rewards to
the customers in line with the accounting policy
adopted and may not have been recognized in the
appropriate period.

Our audit proceduresincluded the following:

*  obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design and implementation and operating
effectiveness of controls around recognition
of revenue;

assessing the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting policies for revenue
recognition and compliance of those policies
with applicable accounting standards;

checked on sample basis the recorded sales
transactions based on underlying supporting
documents;and

tested timeliness of revenue recognition by
comparing individual sales transactions
before and after the year end to underlying
supporting documents.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
report, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
opinion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereisa
material misstatement of this otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override ofinternal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
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doubt onthe Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
goingconcern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the keyaudit matters. We describe these mattersin our
auditor'sreport unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report thatin our opinion:

a)

b)

Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn upin
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in thisindependent auditor's reportis Rana M. Usman Khan.

DELOITTE YOUSUF ADIL
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner:

Rana Muhammad Usman Khan

Multan, October4, 2018
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018 2018 2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees Rupees
ASSETS (Restated) (Restated)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 851,124,734 882,766,913 890,476,175
Long term deposits 2,379,997 2,379,997 2,379,997
853,504,731 885,146,910 892,856,172
Current assets
Stores and spares 4 20,167,808 20,178,306 11,994,464
Stock in trade 5 262,522,072 161,021,011 252,639,869
Trade debts 6 126,745,756 142,818,029 146,100,238
Loans and advances 7 42,827,997 31,981,278 33,311,449
Trade deposits and prepayments 8 929,033 646,676 533,025
Taxrefunds due from government 9 26,850,372 22,309,184 6,903,805
Cash and bank balances 10 26,033,472 1,280,832 3,224,064
506,076,510 380,235,316 454,706,914
Total assets 1,359,581,241 1,265,382,226 1,347,563,086
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 11 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment 12 555,466,212 564,143,421 575,634,520
Tax holiday reserve 2,668,746 2,668,746 2,668,746
General reserve 80,000,000 80,000,000 80,000,000
Unappropriated profits 181,999,407 152,641,179 178,237,663
828,134,365 807,453,346 844,540,929
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax 13 95,745,379 106,550,429 119,794,403
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 140,144,792 114,447,232 90,465,764
Accrued markup 15 5,335,874 3,979,734 4,963,575
Short term borrowings 16 262,477,868 213,937,660 271,066,846
Unclaimed dividend 637,147 798,894 -
Provision for taxation 17 27,105,816 18,214,931 16,731,569
435,701,497 351,378,451 383,227,754
Contingencies and commitments 18
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,359,581,241 1,265,382,226 1,347,563,086

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mian TanvirAhmad Sheikh Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Sohail Nadeem
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Sales - net
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Other income / (expenses)

Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating expenses

Finance cost

Profit / (loss) before taxation

Provision for taxation
Current
- for the year
- prior year
Deferred tax

Profit / (loss) for the year

Earning / (loss) per share - basic and diluted

Note

19
20

21

22
23
24
25

26

28

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/-
Mian TanvirAhmad Sheikh
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-

Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan

Director

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
2,168,465,319 1,966,036,666
(2,043,593,233) (1,916,981,827)
124,872,086 49,054,839
- (2,316,945)
124,872,086 46,737,894
(14,817,005) (12,492,485)
(50,239,918) (45,799,646)
(2,684,132) -
(21,114,699) (20,562,389)
(88,855,754) (78,854,520)
36,016,332 (32,116,626)
(27,105,816) (18,214,931)
965,453 -
7,757,132 9,985,346
(18,383,231) (8,229,585)
17,633,101 (40,346,211)
22.04 (50.43)
Sd/-

Sohail Nadeem
Chief Financial Officer

22



i

Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
------------ Rupees ----------
Profit / (loss) for the year 17,633,101 (40,346,211)
Other comprehensive income
Transfer from deferred tax due to change rate on opening revaluation 3,047,918 3,258,628
surplus
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 20,681,019 (37,087,583)

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
Mian TanvirAhmad Sheikh Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Sohail Nadeem
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Finance cost
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances (excduding advance income tax)
Trade deposits and prepayments
Tax refunds due from government
Decrease / (increase) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity paid

Finance cost paid

Net cash (used in) /generated from operating activities

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note

27

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
36,016,332 (32,116,626)
31,642,179 33,102,540
- 2,316,945
9,008,940 12,168,710
21,114,699 20,562,389
97,782,150 36,033,958
10,498 (8,183,842)
(101,501,061) 91,618,858
16,072,273 3,282,209
4,771,382 307,647
(282,357) (113,651)
(4,541,188) (15,405,379)
19,884,770 23,340,888
(65,585,683) 94,846,730
32,196,467 130,880,688
(32,867,579) (15,709,045)
(3,196,150) (10,727,200)
(19,758,559) (21,546,230)
(23,625,821) 82,898,213
- (29,615,223)
- 1,905,000
- (27,710,223)
(161,747)| | (2,036)|
(161,747) (2,036)
(23,787,568) 55,185,954
(212,656,828) (267,842,782)
(236,444,396) (212,656,828)

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/- Sd/-
Mian TanvirAhmad Sheikh

Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director

Sd/-
Sohail Nadeem

Chief Financial Officer

24



i

Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Balance at July 01, 2016 as previously reported
Effect of change in accounting policy

(net of deferred tax)(note: 2.5.2)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment
on account of incremental depreciation
(net of deferred tax)

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment
on account of disposal of assets (net of deferred tax)

Balance at July 01, 2017 - Restated

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment
on account of incremental depreciation
(net of deferred tax)

Balance at June 30, 2018

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/-
Mian TanvirAhmad Sheikh
Chief Executive Officer

Reserves
Capital Revenue
Surpl,
Share Capital urp us. on i Tota |
revaluation of | Tax holiday General | Accumulated
property, plant reserve reserve profit/Loss
and equipment
Rupees
8,000,000 - 2,668,746 80,000,000 178,237,663 268,906,409
575,634,520 575,634,520
- - - - (40,346,211)  (40,346,211)
- 3,258,628 - - - 3,258,628
- 3,258,628 - - (40,346,211)  (37,087,583)
- (12,454,930) - - 12,454,930 -
- (2,294,797) - - 2,294,797 -
8,000,000 564,143,421 2,668,746 80,000,000 152,641,179 807,453,346
- - - - 17,633,101 17,633,101
- 3,047,918 - - - 3,047,918
- 3,047,918 - - 17,633,101 20,681,019
- (11,725,127) - - 11,725,127 -
8,000,000 555,466,212 2,668,746 80,000,000 181,999,407 828,134,365
Sd/- Sd/-

Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan

Director

Sohail Nadeem
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.1.

=~

1.2.

2.1.

2.2

2.2.1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on December 03,
1958 as a private limited company. It was converted into a public limited company in 1965 under the
Companies, Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017). Its shares are quoted on Pakistan stock exchange (PSX) in
Pakistan. It is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarn. The registered office and mill of the
Company is situated at Allahwasaya Square, Mumtazabad Industrial Area, Vehari Road, Multan in the province
of Punjab.

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017. Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards or IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Standards, interpretation and amendment adopted during the year

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Company's
financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended
June 30, 2018

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2018. These amendments are either not
relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's
financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.
Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after:
Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Amendments as a

January 01, 2017
result of the disclosure initiative. ¥

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Recognition of deferred tax

. January 01, 2017
assets for unrealised losses.

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

The Act has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation and presentation of annual and interim
financial statements of the Company. These changes also include change in respect of recognition criteria of
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as more fully explained in note 6, change in nomenclature of primary
statements, etc.
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2.2.2

Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the fourth schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting

in the:

- elimination of duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements; and

- incorporation of significant additional disclosures.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning
on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and amendments are
either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the
Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' - Clarification on the
classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts': Amendments regarding the interaction
of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - This standard will supersede IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement upon its
effective date.

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments
regarding prepayment features with negative compensation and
modifications of financial liabilities

IFRS 15 'Revenue' - This standard will supersede IAS 18, IAS 11, IFRIC
13, 15 and 18 and SIC 31 upon its effective date.

IFRS 16 'Leases': This standard will supersede IAS 17 'Leases' upon its
effective date.

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Amendments regarding
plan amendments, curtailments or settlements.

Amendments to IAS 28 ‘lnvestments in Associates and Joint
Ventures' - Amendments regarding long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not
applied.

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property': Clarification on
transfers of property to or from investment property

IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration':
Provides guidance on transactions where consideration against non-
monetary prepaid asset / deferred income is denominated in foreign
currency.

Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after:

January 01, 2018

An entity choosing to apply the
overlay approach retrospectively to
qualifying financial assets does so
when it first applies IFRS 9. An entity
choosing to apply the deferral
approach does so for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

July 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

July 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018
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2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.5.1

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments': Clarifies the

accounting treatment in relation to determination of taxable profit

(tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax January 01, 2019
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under

IAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by:

- revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment; and
- certain financial instrument at fair value.

Critical judgments and accounting estimates in applying the accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and
judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgment about carrying values of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other resources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on the ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates in these financial statements relate to the

- useful life of depreciable assets.

- provision for doubtful receivables.
- provision for tax and deferred tax.
- revaluation of assets.

However, assumptions and judgments made by management in the application of accounting policies that
have significant effect on the financial statements are not expected to result in material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out as below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric

installation and power house and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any.

28



Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.

i

2.5.2

Revaluation

Freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric installation and power house are stated
at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity so that the fair
value and carrying value do not differ materially at the balance sheet date. Increases in the carrying amounts
arising on revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery are recognised, net of tax, in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that
increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Decrease that reverse previous increases of the same asset are
first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the
asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and
depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment to unappropriated profit. Depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance
method to write-off the cost over the estimated remaining useful life of assets. The useful life and
depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment. Rates
of depreciation are stated in note 3. In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation is
charged from the month of acquisition and up to the month preceding the disposal respectively.

Gains / losses on disposal of operating assets, if any, are recognized in profit and loss account, as and when
assets are derecognized.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements are capitalized and assets replaced, if any, other than those kept as stand-by, are retired.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) is stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss. All expenditures
connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under CWIP.
These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Change in accounting policy

During the year, the Company changed its accounting policy in respect of the accounting and presentation of
revaluation surplus on property plant, and equipment. Previously, the company 's accounting policy was in
accordance with the provision of section 235 of repealed companies ordinance, 1984. The revalution surplus on
property plant and equipment was shown as a seperate item below equity, in accordance with the presentation
requirement of the repealed companies ordinance, 1984.

The companies Act, 2017 has not retained the above mentioned specific accounting and presentation
requirements of revaluation surplus on property plant and equipment.

Those provisions and resultant previous policy of the Company regarding IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment was not in alignment with the accounting treatment and presentation of revaluation surplus as
prescribed in International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the international
Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and notified under the Companies Act, 2017.
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2.5.3

2.5.4

2.5.5

The change in accounting policy had no impact on accumulated surplus and net assets, as at June 30,2018. The
presentation of surplus on revaluation on property plant and equipment has been changed. Any revaluation
increase arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings is recognized in other comprehensive income
and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property plant and equipment" in
the statement of financial position and statement of changes in fund as a capital reserve as part of net assets. The

new accounting policy is explained under note 2.5.1, above.The resulted impact of changein accounting policy is
further explained below:

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements

of 1AS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' and comparative figures have been
restated.

Stores and spares

These are valued at cost. The cost is determined on moving average cost less allowance for obsolete and slow

moving items. Items in transit are valued at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon upto the
reporting date.

Stock in trade

These are determined at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined as;
Particulars Mode of valuation

Raw material

- At mills At weighted average cost.

- In transit Cost accumulated to the balance sheet date.
Work in process Average manufacturing cost.
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost.
Waste Net realizable value.

Cost in relation to work in process and finished goods represents the annual average cost which consists of
prime cost and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Cost of raw materials consumed is accounted for by
applying the annual average cost of both imported and local purchases.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful

receivables based on review of outstanding amounts at the year end. Balances considered bad and
irrecoverable are written off when identified.
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2.5.6

2.5.7

2.5.8

2.5.9

2.5.10

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with
banks, highly liquid short-term investments that are convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to
insignificant risk of change in value, and short-term running finance. Running finances under mark-up
arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for the goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current tax rates after taking into account tax
credits,assumptions and rebates available, if any or on turnover at the specified rates or Alternate Corporate
Tax Act as defined in section 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. The charge for
current tax also includes adjustments, where necessary, relating to prior years which arise due to assessments
framed / finalized during the year.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided for using balance sheet liability method for all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and corresponding
tax bases used. In this regard, the effect on deferred taxation of the portion of income subject to final tax
regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of Technical Release - 27 of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period when
the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited
or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.5.11

2.5.12

2.5.13

2.5.14

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets except deferred
tax assets and inventories may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognised. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

Foreign currency translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak
Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

Gains and losses on retranslation and settlement are included in profit or loss for the period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business.

- Direct local sales are recorded when significant risks and rewards are transferred which coincides with
delivery of goods to customers.

- Sales through agents are booked on intimation from the agents.

- Profit from investment is recognized on time apportioned basis using effective rate of interest.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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2.5.15 Financial instruments

2.5.16

2.5.17

2.5.18

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument and de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial asset and in case of financial liability when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is off set and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its eligible employees who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service i.e. one year of service. Employees successfully completing one year of
service are paid with the outstanding amount which is calculated at latest drawn gross salary for the year.
Charge for the year represents the amount becoming due in the year (whether paid or un-paid).

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per shares (EPS) data. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to share holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to share
holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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3.5. The Company had revalued its Land-Freehold, Building on Free-hold Land, Plant & Machinery, Electric
Installation and Power house on June 30, 2016. The revaluation was carried out by M/s. K. G. Traders
(Private) Limited on the basis of market value. The revaluation surplus had been credited to 'Surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment'. Had there been no revaluation the related figures of property,

4.1.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

plant and equipment would have been as follows:

Carrying amount

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Land- Freehold 5,335,834 5,335,834
Building on Free-hold Land 4,977,444 5,239,414
Plant & Machinery 106,179,755 111,768,163
Electric installation 1,875,743 2,206,757
Power house
Building on freehold land 2,986,026 3,143,185
Generators 67,402,808 70,950,324
Electric Installation 3,331,922 3,919,909
192,089,532 202,563,587
STORES AND SPARES
Stores 18,742,560 17,561,644
Spares 1,425,248 2,616,662
20,167,808 20,178,306
The Company does not hold any stores, spares and loose tools for specific capitalization.
STOCK IN TRADE 2018 2017
Raw materials Rupees Rupees
- Cotton 147,373,711 83,312,370
- Polyester 56,778,384 7,260,538
204,152,095 90,572,908
Work in process 11,799,401 10,260,893
Finished goods
-Yarn 44,963,066 59,116,240
-Waste 1,607,510 1,070,970
46,570,576 60,187,210
262,522,072 161,021,011
TRADE DEBTS
Local - unsecured
Considered good 126,911,262 142,818,029
Provision for doubtful debts (165,506) (165,506)
126,745,756 142,652,523

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 to 90 days terms.

The Company provides for doubtful debts on the basis of past due balances. Balances considered bad and

irrecoverable are written off when identified.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of diversified customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed

on the financial condition of account receivable and, where appropriate, provision is made.
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6.4. The fair value of trade receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

6.5. At year end, trade receivables of Rs.123.50 million (2017: Rs. 142.64 million) were neither past due nor

10.

11.

impaired.

6.6. As at year end, trade receivables of Rs. 3.24 million (2017: Rs. 0.17 million) were past due but not considered
impaired for which the Company has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The aging of past due receivables is as follows:

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
3 to 6 months - 9,687
Over 6 months 3,244,591 162,996
3,244,591 172,683
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good
Advances to employees 650,424 1,108,106
Advance to suppliers 1,102,231 5,415,931
Advance income tax 41,075,342 25,457,241
42,827,997 31,981,278
TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Margin deposit 5,000 5,000
Prepayments 924,033 641,676
929,033 646,676
TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Sales tax refundable 22,859,003 20,173,688
Income tax refundable 3,991,369 2,135,496
26,850,372 22,309,184
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 468,123 890,577
Cash at banks in current accounts 25,565,349 390,255
26,033,472 1,280,832
SHARE CAPITAL
2018 2017 2018 2017
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
Authorised
1,000,000 1,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 10 each. 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
499,900 499,900 issued for cash 4,999,000 4,999,000
300,100 300,100 as bonus shares 3,001,000 3,001,000
800,000 800,000 8,000,000 8,000,000
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11.1. There were no movements in issued, subscribed and paid up capital during the reporting year.
11.2. The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

11.3. Shareholders are entitled to cast vote proportionate to the paid up value of shares carrying voting rights. All
shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets

2018 2017
12. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, Rupees Rupees
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Opening balance 655,580,960 676,651,999
Addition during the year - -
Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
Incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax (11,725,127) (12,454,930)
Disposal during the year - net of deferred tax - (2,294,797)
Related deferred tax liability due to incremental depreciation (4,789,136) (5,337,827)
Related deferred tax liability due to disposal during the year - (983,485)
(16,514,263) (21,071,039)
Closing balance 639,066,697 655,580,960
Related deferred tax liability
Opening balance (91,437,539) (101,017,479)
Addition during the year - -
Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
- deferred tax on incremental depreciation 4,789,136 5,337,827
- deferred tax on disposal during the year - 983,485
- deferred tax due to rate change 3,047,918 3,258,628
7,837,054 9,579,940
Closing balance (83,600,485) (91,437,539)
555,466,212 564,143,421
12.1. The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not available for
distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.
12.2. The effect of change in accounting policy is summarised below 2017
As previously As Restatement
reported restated
Effect on statement of financial position
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 564,143,421 - (564,143,421)
Share capital and reserves 564,143,421 564,143,421
2016
As previously As Restatement
reported restated
Effect on statement of financial position
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 676,651,999 - (676,651,999)
Share capital and reserves 676,651,999 676,651,999

There was no cash flow impact as a result of retrospective application of change in accounting policy
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13. DEFERRED TAX

Opening balance

Deferred tax recognised in

Profit and loss Recognized in

account

equity Closing balance
Movement for the year ended June 30, 2018
Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary
differences arising in respect of:
- property, plant and equipment 35,392,861 (1,395,726) - 33,997,135
- Surplus on revaluation of assets 91,437,539 (4,789,136) (3,047,918) 83,600,485
Deferred tax assets on deductable temporary -
differences arising in respect of: -
- doubtful debts (49,652) 1,655 - (47,997)
- staff gratuity (1,417,128) (1,638,472) - (3,055,600)
- unabsorbed tax losses (18,813,191) 64,547 - (18,748,644)
106,550,429 (7,757,132) (3,047,918) 95,745,379

Deferred tax recognised in

Opening balance

Profit and loss

Recognized in

account equity Closing balance
Movement for the year ended June 30, 2017
Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary
differences arising in respect of:
- property, plant and equipment 33,929,302 1,463,559 - 35,392,861
- Surplus on revaluation of assets 101,017,479 (6,321,312) (3,258,628) 91,437,539
Deferred tax assets on deductable temporary
differences arising in respect of:
- doubtful debts (51,307) 1,655 - (49,652)
- staff gratuity (1,017,498) (399,630) - (1,417,128)
- unabsorbed tax losses (14,083,573) (4,729,618) - (18,813,191)
119,794,403 (9,985,346) (3,258,628) 106,550,429

13.1. The Company has not regonized deferred tax asset against difference of minimum tax chargeable u/s 113 and

tax payable under Part I, Division Il of the First Schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company does
not expect that there will be sufficient taxable profit in forseable future against which difference of minimum

tax and normal tax liability will be adjusted.
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14.

14.1.

15.

16.

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

2018 2017

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Creditors 19,122,013 33,285,167
Accrued liabilities 91,491,232 61,557,343
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 1,945,023 -
Advance payments 4,870,153 7,576,094
Tax deducted at source 1,204,008 1,081,033
Workers' welfare fund 14.1 6,355,555 5,616,446
Gratuity payable 10,536,550 4,723,760
Bonus payable 4,315,225 -
Other payables 305,033 607,389

140,144,792 114,447,232

The Supreme Court of Pakistan through its order dated November 10, 2016 decided that the changes to the
WWF Ordinance, 1971 made through Finance Acts, 2006 & 2008 were ultra vires to the constitution of
Pakistan. However, the taxation authorities have proceeded to file a review petition there against in the
Supreme Court of Pakistan. Due to this review petition and other legal uncertainties, the Company continues
to carry the payable in this respect.

2018 2017
ACCRUED MARKUP Note Rupees Rupees
Short term borrowings 5,335,874 3,979,734
5,335,874 3,979,734
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Cash Finance 16.1 132,341,358 46,000,772
Running finance 16.2 130,136,510 167,936,888
262,477,868 213,937,660

These facilities have been obtained from Banks for working capital requirements, and are secured against
pledge of cotton bales, MM fiber, and yarn in lock and key under bank's muccaddum.

Cash finance facilities carry mark up at the rates ranging from 7.01% to 7.61% per annum (2017: 6.84% to
7.27% per annum).

These running finance facilities have been obtained from Banks for working capital requirements, and are
secured against cotton bales, personal guarantee of directors, joint pari passu charge over current assets of
the company and pledge of stocks.

Running finance facilities carry mark up at the rates ranging from 7.10% to 7.92% per annum (2017: 7.04% to
7.77% per annum).

These facilities expire on various dates by December 31, 2018.

Short term borrowing facilities available from commercial banks under mark up arrangements aggregate to Rs.
660 Million (2017: Rs. 815 Million) of which facilities remained un-utilized at the year end amounted to Rs. 398
million (2017: 601 million). Facilities available for opening letters of credit and guarantee aggregate to Rs. 130
million (2017: Rs. 130 million) of which facilities remained un-utilized at the year end amounted to Rs. 102.9
million (2017: Rs. 102.71 million).
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17.

18.

18.1.

18.2.

2018 2017

PROVISION FOR TAXATION Note Rupees Rupees
Opening 18,214,931 16,731,569
Provision made during the year

- Current 26 27,105,816 18,214,931
Less: Adjustment of advance tax against (18,214,931) (16,731,569)
completed assessments

27,105,816 18,214,931

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The Company has filed a writ petition against water and sanitation agency (WASA) Multan regarding special
notice dated December 22, 2004 in which the authority has demanded a sum of Rs. 4.1 million of the arrears
of water effluent discharge. The Company is of opinion that it is a spinning mill and has not undertaken a job of
weaving and finishing so there is no effluent discharge of water from the unit. The Lahore High Court through
order no. C.M.No.2 of 2004 had ordered that impugned notice shall remain suspended till final order.

Commitments

Guarantees issued by Commercial Banks on behalf of the Company outstanding as at June 30, 2018 were for
Rs. 27.10 million (2017: Rs. 27.10 million).
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19.

20.

20.1.

SALES - Net

Local
-Yarn
- Ployester
- Waste

COST OF GOODS SOLD

Raw materials consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Stores and spares consumed
Packing materials consumed
Fuel and power

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Depreciation

Adjustment of work in process

Opening stock
Closing stock
Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods sold

Raw materials consumed

Opening stock

Purchases (including direct expenses) - Net

Closing stock

Cotton cess

Note

20.1
20.2

3.3.1

20.3

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
2,155,877,998 1,950,463,646
1,712,200 5,521,600
10,875,121 10,051,420
2,168,465,319 1,966,036,666
1,458,893,624 1,337,608,528
208,383,322 210,337,150
36,308,766 32,640,096
27,560,537 26,503,097
267,637,165 251,344,753
1,068,146 1,925,526
4,479,552 4,793,019
27,183,995 28,729,761
2,031,515,107 1,893,881,930
10,260,893 8,840,856
(11,799,401) (10,260,893)
(1,538,508) (1,420,037)
2,029,976,599 1,892,461,893
60,187,210 84,707,144
(46,570,576) (60,187,210)
13,616,634 24,519,934
2,043,593,233 1,916,981,827
90,572,908 159,091,869
1,571,082,369 1,267,656,154
1,661,655,277 1,426,748,023
(204,152,095) (90,572,908)
1,457,503,182 1,336,175,115
1,390,442 1,433,413
1,458,893,624 1,337,608,528

20.2. Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 8.39 million (2017: Rs. 11.27 million) in respect of gratuity.

20.3. ltincludes waste stock amounting to Rs. 1.60 million (2017: Rs. 1.07 million).
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21.

22.

23.

23.1. Salaries and benefits include Rs. 0.61 million (2017: Rs. 0.89 million) in respect of gratuity.

i

OTHER INCOME / (LOSS)

From other than financial assets
Profit on sale of vehicles
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Salary of sale staff
Commission on sale of yarn
Discount

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors' remuneration
Salaries and benefits
Vehicles running and maintenance
Trawelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Communication

Rent, rates and taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Fee and subscription
Advertisement
Entertainment

Insurance

Depreciation

Auditors' remuneration
Legal and professional
Others

Note

23.1.

23.2.

331
23.3.

23.2. This includes directors' travelling amounting to Rs. 6.13 million (2017: Rs. 4.66 million).

23.3. Auditors' remuneration

- Statutory audit fee

- Half yearly review

- Review report on compliance with CCG
- Certificate for CDC and free float shares
- Out of pocket expenses

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
- 670,330
- (2,987,275)
- (2,316,945)
2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
3,886,300 3,487,816
10,930,705 7,897,745
- 1,106,924
14,817,005 12,492,485
12,885,806 12,330,000
11,758,319 11,102,635
6,374,770 5,835,883
6,247,375 5,066,629
651,834 710,708
1,656,393 1,560,153
473,959 475,747
26,084 57,908
813,132 652,628
152,725 84,900
678,636 642,309
1,000,937 1,109,379
4,458,184 4,372,779
1,013,705 786,600
1,453,742 552,667
594,317 458,721
50,239,918 45,799,646
2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
500,000 500,000
200,000 150,000
50,000 50,000
100,000 -
163,705 86,600
1,013,705 786,600
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24.

25.

26.

26.1.

26.2.

26.3.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund

FINANCE COST

Mark up on

- Short term borrowings
Bank and other charges
Bank guarantee commission

PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current
- for the year
- prior year
Deferred tax 13

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Applicable tax rate
Profit / (loss) before tax

Tax on accounting profit before tax
Income chargeable to tax at lower rate
Effect due to inadmisible expenses
Reversal of prior year adjustment
Effect of change in deferred tax rate
Due to effect of carry forward losses
Others

Current year provision

Note

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
1,945,023 -
739,109 -
2,684,132 -
20,059,643 19,302,608
784,671 1,022,411
270,385 237,370
21,114,699 20,562,389
27,105,816 18,214,931
(965,453) =
(7,757,132) (9,985,346)
18,383,231 8,229,585
2018 2017
30% 31%
36,016,332 (32,116,626)
2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
10,804,900 (9,956,154)
16,300,916 28,171,085
(6,653,883) (4,135,109)
(965,453) -
(503,763) (605,707)
(562,559) (5,183,927)
(36,927) (60,603)
18,383,231 8,229,585

The Company has filed Income Tax Return up to tax year 2017 which is deemed assessed as per Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.

Management is of view that the income tax provision for the year is sufficient to discharge the tax liability.
Comparison of tax provision as per accounts viz a viz tax assessment for last three years is as follows:

As per tax As per
Tax year
Assessment Accounts
Income / (Expense)
------ Rupees-----
2015 (17,591,645) (17,591,645)
2016 (16,731,569) (16,731,569)
2017 (17,249,478) (18,214,931)
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27.

28.

28.1.

29.

29.1.

2018 2017

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances 26,033,472 1,280,832
Short term running finance (262,477,868) (213,937,660)

(236,444,396) (212,656,828)
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit / (loss) for the year Rupees 17,633,101 (40,346,211)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number 800,000 800,000
Earning / (loss) per share - basic and diluted Rupees 22.04 (50.43)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic profit / (loss) per share of the Company.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative
disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which
all employees understand their roles and obligations. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out
by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in

derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

45



i

Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Ltd.

29.2.

29.2.1

29.2.2

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties fail completely to
perform as contracted. Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 155.81 million (2017: Rs. 147.58 million), the financial assets
which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 155.34 million (2017: Rs. 146.70 million). The Company manages credit risk
in trade debts by assigning credit limits to its customers and thereby does not have significant exposure to any individual
customer.

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances and bank balances. The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is as follows:

Financial assets
2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Deposits 2,379,997 2,379,997
Trade debts 126,745,756 142,818,029
Margin deposit 5,000 5,000
Loans and advances 650,424 1,108,106
Bank balances 25,565,349 390,255

155,346,526 146,701,387

Credit risk related to receivables

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure is continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure
is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management annually.

Trade debts consist of a large number of diversified Customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial
condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate, provision is made. The Company does not have any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any Company of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities.

Credit risk related to bank balances

In respect of bank balances, credit risk on bank balances is limited as they are placed with local banks having good credit
ratings assigned by credit rating agencies.

Rating
Short term Long term Rating agency
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCR-VIS
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
Standard Chartered Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
Bank Al-Falah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited Al A+ PACRA
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA
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29.3. Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Note 29.3.2 below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities that the
Company has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.
29.3.1 Liquidity and interest risk table
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at
the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be
required to pay.
Weighted Average Upto 1 year 1-5years Total
effective rate P y y
June 30, 2018 Rupees Rupees Rupees
Financial liabilities
Interest bearing
Short term borrowings  7.01% to 7.92% 262,477,868 - 262,477,868
Non interest bearing
Accrued markup 5,335,874 - 5,335,874
Trade and other payables 117,910,980 - 117,910,980
385,724,722 - 385,724,722
Weighted Average Upto 1 year 1-5years Total
effective rate P y y
June 30, 2017 Rupees Rupees Rupees
Financial liabilities
Interest bearing
Short term borrowings 6.84% t0 7.77% 213,937,660 - 213,937,660
Non interest bearing
Accrued markup 3,979,734 - 3,979,734
Trade and other payables 101,865,239 - 101,865,239
319,782,633 - 319,782,633

29.3.2 Financing facilities

Secured bank loan facilities with various maturity dates through to december 2018 and which may be extended by mutual

agreement:
2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
- amount used 262,477,868 213,937,660
- amount un-used 397,522,132 601,062,340
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29.4.

29.4.1

29.4.2

29.4.3

29.4.4

29.5.

29.6.

29.6.1

Market risk management

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing returns.

Interest rate risk management

Interest / markup rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest / markup rates will affect the value of financial
instruments. The Company has significant amount of interest based financial assets and financial liabilities which are largely
based on variable interest / markup rates, therefore the Company has to manage the related finance cost which exposes it
to the risk of 3 months and 6 months KIBOR. Since the impact on interest rate exposure is significant to the Company,
management is considering the alternative arrangement to manage interest rate exposure in future.

Interest rate sensitivity

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company’s profit
for the year ended June 30, 2018 would increase / decrease by Rs. 2.62 million (2017: Rs. 2.425 million). This is mainly
attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

The Company does not recognized any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss therefore,
a change in interest rate would not affect profit or loss.
Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions with foreign undertakings and
balances held in foreign currency. However, the Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk on assets and liabilities as
it does not have foreign debtors or creditors.

Equity price risk management

The Company is not exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments as the Company has no such investment
held for trading purpose.

Determination of fair values
Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arms length transaction other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair value estimation

IFRS 13 requires fair value measurement disclosures using following three level fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments.

Information about fair value hierarchy and asset classified under the hierarchy as follows.
- Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. drive from prices). The Company has no items to report in this level.

- Level 3: Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Fair value of non-financial asset measured at fair value
Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The company's Land-Freehold, Building on Free-hold Land, Plant & Machinery, Electric Installation and Power House at
revalued amount, being fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent depreciation and subsequent impairment
losses, if any. The fair value measurement of the company's Free-hold Land, Plant & Machinery, Electric Installation and
Power House as at June 30, 2016 were Performed by M/s. K. G. Traders (Private) Limited (valuer), independent valuer not
related to the company. The valuer is listed on panel of Pakistan Banks Association and they have proper qualification and
experience in the fair value measurement of property, plant and equipment.
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29.7.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-------------------- Rupees-----------------------

As at June 30, 2018

Land- Freehold - 356,125,000 - 356,125,000
Building on freehold land - 95,495,673 - 95,495,673
Plant & machinery - 266,367,862 - 266,367,862
Power house

- Building on freehold land - 7,539,142 - 7,539,142
- Generators - 89,586,163 - 89,586,163
- Electric installation - 8,543,562 - 8,543,562

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees

As at June 30, 2017

Land- Freehold - 356,125,000 - 356,125,000
Building on freehold land - 100,521,761 - 100,521,761
Plant & machinery - 280,387,223 - 280,387,223
Power house

- Building on freehold land - 7,935,939 - 7,935,939
- Generators - 94,301,224 - 94,301,224
- Electric installation - 10,051,250 - 10,051,250

There were no transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.

Financial instruments by category

The Company finances its operation through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to
maintaining an approximate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. Taken as a whole, the Company's risk
arising from financial instruments is limited as there is no significant exposure to price and cash flow risk in respect of such

instruments.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied for line items as below:

Loans and Held to Total June 30,
June 30, 2018 receivables maturity 2018
Rupees
Assets as per statement of financial position
Deposits 2,379,997 - 2,379,997
Trade debts 126,745,756 - 126,745,756
Margin deposit 5,000 5,000
Loans and advances 650,424 - 650,424
Cash and bank balances 26,033,472 - 26,033,472
155,814,649 - 155,814,649
Financial
Liabilities Total June 30,
measured at 2018
amortized cost
Liabilities as per statement of financial position Rupees Rupees
Short term borrowings 262,477,868 262,477,868
Trade and other payables 117,910,980 117,910,980
Interest and mark-up accrued on loans 5,335,874 5,335,874
385,724,722 385,724,722
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30.

June 30, 2017

Assets as per statement of financial position

Long term deposits

Trade debts
Margin deposit

Loans and advances
Cash and bank balances

Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Interest and mark-up accrued on loans

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURE

Loans and Held to Total June 30,
receivables maturity 2017
Rupees
2,379,997 - 2,379,997
142,818,029 - 142,818,029
5,000 - 5,000
1,108,106 - 1,108,106
1,280,832 - 1,280,832
147,591,964 - 147,591,964
Financial
Liabilities Total June 30,
measured at 2017
amortized cost
Rupees Rupees
213,937,660 213,937,660
101,865,239 101,865,239
3,979,734 3,979,734
319,782,633 319,782,633

The Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are as follows:

-The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

-The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

-Consistently with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt (as shown in the balance sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e., share capital and unappropriated

profit).

-The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Total debt

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity

Adjusted capital

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
262,477,868 213,937,660
(26,033,472) (1,280,832)
236,444,396 212,656,828
828,134,365 807,453,346

1,064,578,761 1,020,110,174
22.21% 20.85%
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31.

31.1.

31.2.

31.3.

32.

33.

34.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

, Managerial remuneration Utilities
Particulars
2018 2017 2018 2017
------------------------ Rupees ----------===-=nmeeeeuuu
Chief Executive 4,359,677 4,200,000 1,427,194 1,293,185
Directors 8,066,129 7,800,000 539,743 705,571
Executive 1,600,000 1,600,000 - -
14,025,806 13,600,000 1,966,937 1,998,756
Particular No of persons
2018 I 2017
Chief Executive 1 1
Directors 2
Executive 1 1

During the year, meeting fee of Rs. 460,000 was paid to the directors. (2017: Rs. 330,000)

The Chief Executive and directors are also provided with the Company owned and maintained cars and telephones at their

residences.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors of the Company and key management personnel. The
Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. There are no related party
transections except for the remuneration of directors and key management personnel as disclosed in note 31.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2018
Number of spindles installed and worked 30,592
Number of shifts worked 1,060
Capacity of yarn at 20's count
on the basis of utilization Kgs 13,164,469
Actual production of yarn at 20's count Kgs 13,102,052

2017
30,592
1,070

13,213,585
12,882,613

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in spinning mills since it fluctuates widely depending on
various factors such as count of yarn spun, spindles speed, twist and raw materials used, etc. It also varies according

to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
| At year end || Average
2018 2017 2018 2017
Head office 22 22 22 22
Plant 793 799 774 813
815 821 796 835
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2017 Cash flow 2018
Rupees Rupees
Short term borrowings 213,937,660 48,540,208 262,477,868

36. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The preparation and presentation of these financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 is in accordance
with requirements in Companies Act, 2017. The fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 has introduced certain
presentation and classification requirements for the elements of financial statements. Accordingly, the
corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the

requirements of Companies Act, 2017. Following major reclassifications due to Companies Act, 2017 together with
other changes have been made during the year:

Reclassified from Reclassified to Reason Rupees
Trade and other payables Unclaimed dividend (Presented on Companies Act, 637,147
face of statement of financial 2017

position)
37. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting held on October 4, 2018.

38. GENERAL

Figures in the financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest rupee except stated otherwise.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mian TanvirAhmad Sheikh Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Sohail Nadeem
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY AS ON JUNE 30, 2018

Number of Shareholding Total Percentage of
Shareholders From To Shares held Total Capital
112 1 100 5,501 0.69
21 101 500 5117 0.64
6 501 1,000 5,200 0.65
9 1,001 5,000 27,111 3.39
8 5,001 10,000 70,526 8.82
1 10,001 15,000 10,064 1.26
7 15,001 20,000 126,360 15.80
3 20,001 25,000 63,644 7.96
4 25,001 30,000 111,756 13.97
2 30,001 35,000 64,316 8.04
1 35,001 40,000 35,560 4.45
2 40,001 45,000 88,006 11.00
0 45,001 50,000 0 0.00
3 50,001 70,000 186,839 23.35
179 800,000 100.00
Serial Categories of Number of Number of Percentage
Number Shareholders Shareholders Shares held
1 Individuals 173 799,745 99.97
2 Joint Stock Companies 2 150 0.02
3 Investment Companies 2 100 0.01
4 2 5 0.00
179 800,000 100
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I

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON JUNE 30, 2018

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

, Number of Number of

Shareholders’ Category Shareholders | Shares Held
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties Nil
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 37 2,751
NIT and ICP
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 2 100
DIRECTORS
Mian Muhammad Jamil 1 61,000
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil 1 65,376
Mian Tanvir Ahmad Sheikh 1 20,070
Mian Tauqir Ahmad Sheikh 1 34,166
Mian Anis Ahmad Sheikh 1 35,560
Mian Muhammad Bilal Ahmad Sheikh 1 44,156
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan 1 60,463
Mian Muhammad Umar Farooq Sheikh 1 43,850
Mr. Javed Musarrat 1 2,500
Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi 1 2,500
Mr. Imran Hussain 1 2,500
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Mian Tanvir Ahmad Sheikh 1 20,070
Directors'/C.E.O's Spouses & Minor Children 6 85,623
Executives Nil
Public Sector Companies and Corporations Nil
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mian Muhammad Jamil 1 61,000
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil 1 65,376
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan 1 60,463
Mian Muhammad Bilal Ahmad Sheikh 1 44 156
Mian Muhammad Umar Farooq Sheikh 1 43,850
General Public 94 10,517
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS ON JUNE 30, 2018

Number of Shareholding Total
Shareholders From To Shares held
31 1 100 734
5 101 500 1,067
1 501 1,000 950
37 2,751
Categories of Shares
Shareholders Number Held Percentage
Individuals 33 2,596 94.37
Joint Stock Companies 2 150 5.45
Others 2 5 0.18
37 2,751 100.00
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FORM OF PROXY

as my proxy in my absence to attend and vote for me and on my behalf at the
(Ordinary or / and Extraordinary as the case may be) General Meeting of the
Companytobeheldonthe ... and at any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this

Please affix Rs. 5/-
Revenue Stamps

Signed by the said

In presence of

Witness:

Name:

Address:

CNIC No.:

Signature:

IMPORTANT

This form of proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at the Company's
Registered office at Allawasaya Square, Mumtazabad Industrial Area, Vehari
Road, Multan not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.
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Allawasaya Square

Mumtazabad Industrial Area
Vehari Road Multan - PAKISTAN
Ph# :+92 61423 3624 - 3 Lines
Fax #:+92 61 652 5202

E-mail: atm@allawasaya.com
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